

Table of Contents

| | Paragraph |
|--|-----------------------|
| Administrator. | 1 |
| Alcohol & Food | 2 |
| BRS | 3 |
| Car Parking | 4 |
| CASC membership | Appendix 14 16 |
| Club Name | 5 |
| Clubhouse (Hours) | 6 |
| Clubhouse (Functions) | 6 |
| Competitions | 7 & 8 |
| Complaints | 9 |
| Complaints& Disputes (competitions) | 10 |
| Course Closure | 11 |
| Dogs | 12 |
| Dress Code | 13 |
| Election of Members | 15 |
| Fees & Subscriptions | 17. |
| Golf Bag Tags | 18 |
| Golf Buggies | 19 |
| Green Fees | 20 |
| Indemnity of Members | 21 |
| Interpretation of Bye Laws | 22 |
| Junior Comps. Eligibility | 23 |
| Juniors hours of play | 24 |
| Meetings | 25 |
| Membership | 16 |
| Notices | 26 |
| Payment of Bills | 27 |
| Permitted hours of play | 28 |
| Resignation or Changes of Membership Category | 29 |
| Snooker | 30 |
| Starting Tees | 31 |
| Non- Competitors | 32 |
| Team Matches | 33 |
| Visitors | 34 |
| BYE LAWS – distribution | 35 |
| APPENDICES FOR MEMBERSHIP CATEGORIES | 1-14 |

Board Signature.....

1.0 THE ADMINISTRATOR

1.1 The Administrator shall record in a book to be kept for the purpose, the proceedings of all meetings of the Captain's Council including correspondence, summon all meetings, and enroll the name of all Council members, given notices and attend to all matters of registration and other like duties as may be required by law or which the Council request.

2.0 ALCOHOL & FOOD

2.1 No member under the age of 18yrs shall be allowed to buy, sell or consume intoxicating liquor on **the club** premises, although Junior Members will be able to use the bar area providing there is an adult present.

2.2 Subject to any restrictions, which may from time to time being imposed by the Executive Board the following shall be entitled to admission to **the Club** premises to be supplied with and/or sold alcohol for consumption on the premises and shall for all purposes be regarded as guests of **the Club** and its members:

2.3 All members, visitors and Golfers on payment of the appropriate green fee and members guests.

2.4 Those taking table meals at **the Club** Premises. Those attending any function organized at **the Club**.

2.5 The hours which liquor is permitted to be served shall be determined by the Executive Board from time to time and posted on the notice board in **the Club** House but in any event shall not exceed the maximum permitted by law.

2.6 FOOD

Members are not permitted to bring their own food and drink for consumption in

the Clubhouse, Lawn or Car Park without Council approval.

3.0 BRS Booking Rules for Members

3.1 Members register on the system using their membership number and create their own password.

3.2 Members may book open and available Tee times up to 2 weeks in advance.

3.3 A member may book themselves and up to a maximum of three others into an available Tee time.

3.4 Tee times that are blocked out for members only, are protected.

3.5 Protected members tee times are currently:

| | |
|-----------|---|
| Monday | 1 st tee time available to 09.30 |
| Tuesday | 1 st tee time available to 10.30 |
| Wednesday | 1 st tee time available to 8.45, then 8.45 onwards – Ladies competition |
| Thursday | 1 st tee time available to 10.30 |
| Friday | 1 st tee time available to 09.30 |
| Saturday | Men's competition day |
| Sunday | 1 st tee time available to 10.00 10.00-10.30 Ladies competition |

During the summer there will be additional protected members times late afternoon/early evening.

3.6 Where members have booked a tee time they must check in on arrival.

3.7 This system will be subject to continuous monitoring and review.

4.0 CAR PARKING

4.1 Vehicles must be parked only in designated areas.

4.2 Golf shoes with metal spikes must not be worn in the car park but changed in the locker room.

5.0 CLUB NAME

5.1 The Club shall be called “**Davyhulme Park Golf Club Limited by Guarantee.**” (Hereinafter in these **Bye-Laws** referred to as **the Club**).

The general management of **the Club** shall be vested in the **Executive Board**

5.2 The main purpose of **the Club** is to provide facilities for, and to promote and encourage participation in the game of Golf.

5.3 Membership of the Club is open to all without discrimination regardless of sex, age, disability, ethnicity, nationality, sexual orientation, religion or any other beliefs. However, limitation of membership according to available facilities is allowable on a nondiscriminatory basis.

5.4 The Club's facilities are available to members without discrimination.

5.5 The Club may have different classes of membership and subscriptions on a non - discriminatory and fair basis. **The Club** will keep subscriptions at a level that will not pose a significant obstacle to people participating.

5.6 The Club is a non-profit making members' body. All surplus income or assets are re-invested in **the Club**.

5.7 Children under the age of 8 are not allowed on the course unless accompanied by an adult member or a member of the Professional's team.

5.8 Members are not allowed to bring into the clubhouse food or drink to be consumed on the premises.

6.0 CLUB HOUSE (Hours)

6.1 The Club House hours shall be determined by the Executive Board from time to time and will be displayed on the notice board.

6.2 CLUBHOUSE (Functions)

6.3 All Lounges and rooms are available for functions, which must be approved by the Executive Board. Application forms can be obtained from the Club Administrator.

7.0 COMPETITION RULES

7.1 R & A latest edition. Captains Council may introduce local rules to suit prevailing circumstances.

8.0 COMPETITIONS

8.1 The Captain's Council together with the Handicap committee shall fix the dates and times of all competitions.

Players in competition shall have the right to pass players who have not entered the competition or who have played their competition round, normal course etiquette.

Competition Rules are displayed on the Notice Board

9.0 COMPLAINTS

9.1 All complaints must be made in writing to the Honorary Secretary. Suggestions may be placed in the Suggestions Book provided. No complaint or suggestion will receive attention unless it is clearly signed and the member's name printed below the signature, otherwise it may be ignored

10.0 COMPLAINTS AND DISPUTES (Competitions).

10.1 In respect of any competition, any complaint must be tendered in writing to the Handicap Committee. This must be prior to the presentation.

10.2. In the case of disputes, rule 34.3 of the Rules of Golf will apply.

10.3 Interpretation of these competition rules shall in the event of a dispute be determined by the Captain's Council whose decision shall be binding on all competitors.

11.0 COURSE CLOSURE

11.1 The final decision on whether the course is closed is completely in the hands of the Greens Committee and the Head Greenkeeper or in their absence the Club Professional. Once a competition has commenced the decision is in the control of the Handicap committee and the Professional. When the course is completely closed a notice will be posted stating that the course is closed all day or stating a time when it will be re-inspected

12 DOGS

12.1 No dogs, other than guide dogs, shall be allowed on the course or in **the Club** House except for security reasons and then only with the permission of the Executive Board.

13.0 DRESS CODE

13.1 The Executive Board expects all members and visitors to dress to a High standard both on the course and in the clubhouse. The minimum standard required together with prohibitions is detailed below: -

13.1.1 The Course

13.1.2 Where players and Caddies wear headgear it must be appropriate for golf and wore in the correct way round.

13.1.3. Golf shoes must be worn at all times.

14.2 Gentlemen

Players must wear appropriate golfing apparel (at least to the standard set by golf brand designer manufacturers) that would normally be available in a Golf supplier's outlet.

For the avoidance of doubt the following is mandatory: -

14.2.1 Men's Shirts must be worn tucked into shorts or trousers

14.2.2. Men's Shorts must be knee length tailored shorts and must be worn with sports socks.

14.2.3 Men's Trousers must be ankle length [unless +2's or +4's] and not be tucked into socks. Three-quarter length trousers/shorts are not permitted.

14.3 Ladies

14.3.1 Players must wear appropriate golfing apparel (at least to the standard set by golf brand designer manufacturers) that would normally be available in a Golf supplier's outlet.

14.3.2 Shorts or skirts must be mid - thigh length or longer.

14.3.3 Vests and tops with shoestring straps are not permitted.

14.3.4 Cropped trousers may be worn.

14.4 Caddies may wear trainers but otherwise should comply with the above as appropriate.

14.5 The Clubhouse:

14.5.1 Upstairs Lounge - Smart casual dress (including shorts) except for Captain's and President's Prize Weekend Presentations when jacket and tie may be required for gentlemen together with any other formal occasion, if so notified.

14.5.2 Alan Rainford Room - Smart casual dress (including shorts) is permitted at all times.

14.5.3 Downstairs Lounge – Smart casual dress (including shorts) may be worn at all times except for occasions, which will be notified to members in advance.

***NOTE:** Soft spikes and dimples are allowed in the Upstairs Lounge, Alan Rainford Room & Downstairs bar in summertime only (April – September)*

Smart casual dress excludes tracksuits, shell suits, trainers.

14.6 Car Park

14.6.1 Shoes are the only item of dress which may be changed in the car park and these must not have metal spikes.

14.7 Presentations

14.7.1 Male prize winners may be required to wear jacket and tie for presentations.

Exception to the above dress code rules is granted to any member engaged on physical/ manual work on behalf of the Club.

15.0 ELECTION OF MEMBERS

15.1 No newly elected member shall be entitled to any of the privileges of the Club until the entrance fee (if applicable) and subscription have been paid.

15.2 The Administrator shall as soon as possible after the election of any Member advise the applicant of such election and subscription payable. The new Member shall become bound by these Bye-Laws and conform to them.

16.0 MEMBERSHIP

16.1 All members are subject to the Articles of Association and the Bye-Laws of **the Club**.

16.2 The membership of **the Club** shall consist of the following classes of Members: any member may join any category of membership if they meet the requirements of that category. These categories do not exclude anyone from playing on payment of a Green Fee.

The eligibility for and the rights attaching to each class of member is as follows:

16.2.1 Eligibility and Conditions:

Limited to 330 men and 330 women. 7 Day membership is available

To persons over 18 years of age and who shall pay 7 Day Membership Subscriptions.

16.2.2 Categories of Membership:

| | Appendix |
|--|-----------------|
| Subscriptions | 1 |
| 7 Day Male or Female | 2 |
| 6 Day Male or Full Female, | 3 |
| 5 Day Male | 4 |
| 7 Day Intermediate Adult Male or Female (21-26yrs) | 5 |
| Life Male or Female | 6 |
| Honorary Male or Female | 7 |
| Special Category Male or Female | 8 |
| Junior Male or Female (8-18) | 9 |
| Country Male or Female | 10 |
| Temporary Male or Female incl. Spouse | 11 |
| Social Male or Female | 12 |
| Corporate Male or Female | 13 |
| CASC Member | 14 |

17.0 FEES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

17.A Fees and Subscriptions are displayed on the upstairs and Ladies Notice Board and are also available from the Administrator. The major subscriptions are given on The Club website

17.1 At the present time no entrance fee is payable, but the Executive Board have the authority to levy one in the future.

17.2 The Executive Board has the discretion to waive the entrance fee for a Junior Member after taking into account any subscriptions paid as a Junior Member.

17.3 The Executive Board also has the discretion to waive the entrance fee for a former member seeking re-election to membership provided that an entrance fee has previously been paid by that

Former member. The entrance fee and the terms of payment shall be fixed by the Executive Board from time to time.

17.4 A subscription is payable on acceptance as a member.

17.5 The Executive Board will and subject to at least one reminder having been given in writing by the Honorary Secretary remove from membership anyone whose subscription is not paid by 30th April.

17.6 Any member elected after 30th April in any subscription year shall be required to pay the entrance fee (if applicable) and a pro-rata proportion of the appropriate subscription.

17.7 IAn Adult Member aged less than 22 years on 1st April will receive a 50% discount from the Full member's subscription reducing at a rate of 10% per year to when the member is fewer than 26 on 1st April. Aged over 26 years on 1st April no discount.

17.8 The Executive Board is authorized to raise an Annual Bar Levy, which shall not be classed as a subscription

18.0 GOLF BAG TAGS

18.1 Golf bag tags identifying the members of D.P.G.C must be attached to all golf bags in use on the course.

19.0 GOLF BUGGIES

19.1 Approval of the Honorary Secretary is required before the use of golf buggies is allowed on the course for Members with an existing medical condition. A Doctor's certificate may be required.

20.0 GREEN FEES

20.1 The fees payable shall be determined from time to time by the Executive Board.

21.0 INDEMNITY OF MEMBERS

See Articles of Association

22.0 INTERPRETATION OF BYE LAWS

22.1 Interpretation of these Bye Laws shall, in the event of a dispute, be determined by the Executive Board whose decision shall be final.

23.0 JUNIORS COMPETITION ELIGIBILITY

| | Juniors Under 18 | Juniors Under 18 | Juniors Over 18 | Juniors Over 18 | |
|----------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|---------------------|
| Handicap Limits | 9 and Under | 10 and Over | 9 and Under | 10 and Over | H/Cap Limits |
| Competition | | | | | |
| Juniors | Y | Y | Y | Y | None |
| Board Comps (*) | Y | Y | Y | Y | 28 |
| Invitations | N | N | Y | Y | 28 |
| Captain's | N | N | N | N | N/A |
| President's | N | N | N | N | N/A |
| Knock Out Singles | Y | Y | Y | Y | 28 |
| Knock Out Foursomes | Y | Y | Y | Y | 28 |
| Knock Out Four ball | Y | Y | Y | Y | 28 |
| Knock Out Mixed | Y | Y | Y | Y | 28 |
| Alan Rainford | Y | Y | Y | Y | 28 |

24.0 JUNIORS

24.1 Can play any time except on Ladies competition days when permitted hours of play are displayed outside the Professionals shop. Juniors may play in all senior medal/competitions with the exceptions of Captain's and President's prize when entries by invitation only Club Invitation day competitions are restricted to juniors over the age of 18.

25.0 MEETINGS

25.1 The Annual General Meeting of **the Club** shall be held in April each year.

The Honorary Secretary shall, seven days at least before such meeting, Send to each member entitled to receive notice thereof a notice specifying the time and place of such meeting and the business to be transacted. Non-receipt of such notice shall not invalidate the meeting and shall be good service to send it to the last recorded address of a member.

25.2 Every Annual General Meeting the order of business shall be:

25.3 To receive a report of the Executive Board for the past year.

25.4 To receive Captains Council Report.

25.5 To receive the accounts.

25.6 To receive propositions for any alterations and additions to **The Club's** Articles of Association. (Bye Laws do not need AGM Approval.)

25.7 To elect a Club President, Club Captain, Lady Captain, Honorary Secretary, Vice Presidents, Directors and members of the Council and committees.

25.8 To elect Accountants

25.9 To consider any other business which may be properly transacted thereafter, unless specified otherwise by the Club President.

25.10 The President shall take the Chair at all General Meetings.

25..11 Proxy voting, a voting member may vote either personally or by proxy (whether on a poll vote or otherwise).

25.12 A proxy must be appointed in writing under the hand of the Voting

Member.

25.13 The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting, at which the person named in such instrument proposes to vote.

25.14 At all General Meetings 20 members present and entitled to vote shall form a quorum.

26.0 NOTICES

26.1 No notice or paper of any kind shall be posted in **the Club** House or on the notice boards, except by the Honorary Secretary or other official authorized by the Executive Board.

27.0 PAYMENT OF BILLS

27.1 A member must pay all expenses incurred in **the Club** House by him or herself or his or her guest before leaving it.

28.0 PERMITTED HOURS OF PLAY

28.1 The following are the permitted hours for each category of member however the Executive Board shall have the power to make temporary changes to the permitted hours and to reserve the tee for specific events.

28.2 All Members, any day of the week subject to competitions, societies any Club and organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after the last competitor has teed off and with the approval of the Professional. Wednesday play – the tee will be reserved for non-competitors at the following times:

8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non competitors may play from **6.15pm onwards** or 30 minutes after the last lady competitor has teed off with the authority of the Professional

28.3 All Members, any day of the week subject to competitors, societies and Club organised events.

8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non competitors may play from **6.15pm onwards** or 30 minutes after the last lady competitor has teed off with the authority of the Professional

28.4 6 Day Members Any day of the week (**except Saturday**)

Until 30 minutes after the last competitor) subject to competitions, societies and any Council and organized event. Play after organized competitions must be **30 minutes** after the last competitor has teed off and with the approval of the Professional. Wednesday play – the tee will be reserved for non-competitors at the following times:

8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non competitors play from 6.15pm onwards or 30 minutes after the last lady competitor has teed off with the authority of the Professional.

9.30am to 1.15pm, 3.30pm to 5.45pm. Competitors may play from 6.15pm onwards.

29.0 RESIGNATION OR CHANGE OF MEMBERSHIP CATEGORY OF MEMBERS

29.1 A Member who wishes to resign or to change membership category must give notice in writing to the Honorary Secretary before **1st March** in any year. Failure to do so shall mean that such Member must pay the appropriate subscription for the following year.

29.2 EXPULSION OR SUSPENSION OF A MEMBER Issue 2

30.1 Shall be in accordance with the Articles of Association

30.0 SNOOKER

30.1 All snooker matches must terminate by 11.30pm.

31.0 STARTING TEES FOR MONDAY, TUESDAY, THURSDAY, FRIDAY, SUNDAY

31.1 Members must start at the 1st tee, before 2.30, thereafter subject to the approval of the Club Professional,

32. NON-COMPETITORS

32.1 Non-competitors must not use the course on Saturdays and Sundays of club competition days until 30 minutes after the last competitors have left the 1st tee, unless specifically authorised by the Handicap Committee.

33 TEAM MATCHES

Manchester & District Golf Alliance matches:

Dunham Forest Trophy

Bell Cup

Mixed Foursomes Championship

Foursomes Team Club Championship

North Cheshire League Matches

Junior Teams

All male team players will dress appropriately when attending the match meals. All teams in the Manchester Alliance Competitions and the North Cheshire League with the exception of the Bell Cup and Dunham Forest Trophy shall be selected by the handicap Committee in conjunction with the relevant North Cheshire League

The Captain before every home match the “D.P.G.C facilities booking form” must be submitted to the Chairman of the House Committee. The cost of meals to be in accordance with the maximum price agreed annually by the North Cheshire League.

Any caddies or supporters may only attend the dinners if previously arranged and pay for their own meals and where the home Club allows casual dress.

Dunham Forest Trophy

Team comprising of 7 players, including the Club Professional, Lowest Handicapper, Professional and a non-playing team member, all selected by the Handicap Chairman. Captain, Handicap Chairman to chair the selection meeting. At home matches, the **Club** will pay for the meals for both teams, plus reserve pair, i.e.18 meals, plus extra for the Captains and Presidents of both Clubs
Maximum total = 22 meals

Bell Cup

Team comprising of 7 players all selected by the Club. At home matches the Club will pay for the meals of both teams plus 2 reserves plus extra for the Lady Captain

of both clubs. Maximum total = 20 meals.

Lancashire matches: The Ladies play in the Lancashire Shield for the Silver and Bronze Division as well as the Bell Cup.

Mixed Foursomes Championship

Team comprising of 7 pairs, including the Captain and Lady Captain, all selected by the **Club**. At home matches the Club will pay for the meals for both teams, plus reserve pair, i.e., 32 meals, plus extra for the Presidents of both clubs. Maximum total = 34 meals.

Foursomes Team Club Championship

Team comprising of 7 pairs, selected, by the Handicaps Committee, from those requesting to play. At home matches the **Club** will pay for the meals of both teams plus reserve pair, i.e., 32 meals, plus extra for the Captains and Presidents of both clubs, a maximum of 36 meals.

North Cheshire League Matches

Team comprising of 8 players, selected from those requesting to play.

At both home and away matches, all players and reserves from both clubs will pay for their own meals. If the Captain and President attend, they will pay for their own meals.

The Club will pay for the visiting Captain's and President's meals.

Monies to be collected by the Team Captain.

JUNIOR TEAM MATCHES

The club will pay for food at all home junior team matches

Junior Captain's Play-in.

An allowance of £150 has been allocated for this event.

MDGA Junior Challenge Trophy

SENIORS: Annual Matchplay Trophy

33.0 VISITORS

33.1 Members may introduce up to three visitors to the course at any one time,

but no visitor may be introduced on more than six occasions in any twelve-month period.

34 CLUB BYE-LAWS CONTROLLED DISTRIBUTION

34.1 See below those who have received a controlled copy of these Bye Laws.

34.2 These BYE-LAWS shall be displayed on the Upstairs, Downstairs & Ladies Notice Boards.

34.3 If it is identified that there are omissions or additions required, then a written request must be submitted to the Hon. Secretary, Admin & Executive Board.

HONORARY SECRETARY, ADMIN & DIRECTORS, ALL NOTICE BOARDS

NOTE: NO ONE IS ALLOWED TO COPY IN WHOLE OR PART ANY/ALL SECTIONS OF THE CLUB BYE LAWS.

Appendix 1

Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

7 Day Male or Female

| CODE | GENDER | CATEGORIES |
|-------------|---------------|--|
| MF | Male | 7 Day Member |
| MFS | Male | 7 Day Special (State Pension age to74) |
| MFS 75 | Male | 7 Day Special (age over 75) |
| | Male | 7 Day age 21 and under 26 |
| | Male | 7 Day age 26 and under 30 |
| | Male | 7 Day age 30 and under 36 |
| Male | 7 Day | age 36 and under 40 |
| M60 | Male | 6 Day Winter Golf |
| M6P | Male | 6 Day |
| Male | 6 Day | Special (State Pension age to 74) |
| Male | 6 Day | Special (age over 75) |
| M5 | Male | 5 Day |
| Male | 5 Day | Special (State Pension age and over) |
| MC | Male | Country |
| | | Junior 8 and under 13 |
| | | Junior 13 and under 16 |
| J16/18 | | Junior 16 and under 18 |
| J18/20 | | Junior 18 and under 21 |
| MST | Male | Student |
| SOC | | Social including VAT |

Special Category Members: Full Members, who prior to 1st April each year, have attained State Pension Age and fulfil the necessary continuous service level criteria i.e. 17yrs as at 1st April 2008 increasing by 1 year each year until 1st April 2011, when the criteria will be 20 years continuous service thereafter. This rule will not apply to any member who became a member after 1st Apr.2000

Appendix 1 (F)

Page 2 of 2 Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

7 Day Male or Female

| CODE | GENDER | CATEGORY |
|-------------|---------------|--------------------------|
| | Female | Full |
| Female | 6 Day | |
| | Female | Special (under 70) |
| | Female | Special (age over 70) |
| | Female | Full age 21 and under 26 |
| | Female | Full age 26 and under 30 |
| | Female | Full age 31 and under 35 |
| | Female | Full age 36 and under 41 |
| | Female | Junior 8 and under 13 |
| | Female | Junior 13 and under 17 |
| | Female | Junior 17 and under 19 |
| | Female | Junior 18 and under 22 |
| LST | Female | Female Student |
| SOC | Female | Social incl. VAT |

Special Category Members: Full Members, who prior to 1st April each year, have attained State Pension Age and fulfil the necessary continuous service level criteria i.e. 17 years as at 1st April 2008 increasing by 1 year each year until 1st April 2011, when the criteria will be 20 years continuous service. This rule will not apply to any member who became a member after 1/4/07

Appendix 2

Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

7 Day Male or Female

Eligibility and Conditions

Limited to 330 Males & 330 Females. 7 Day membership is available to persons over 18 years of age and who shall pay 7 Day Membership

Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Wednesday-Females Day play, the tee will be reserved for non-competitors at the following times: 8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non-competitors may play from 6.15pm onwards or 30 minutes after the last female competitor has teed off with **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse use: All 7 Days.

Meetings and voting rights: Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**. One vote per member.

Competitions: 7 Day **Male** Members may play in all competitions except those solely for Females or Juniors.

7 Day **Female** members may play in all competitions except those solely for Males or Juniors.

Visitors: Members may introduce up to three visitors to play on the course.

Joining Fees: As determined by the Executive Board

Club Management: May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 3

Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

6 Day Male or Female (Full) except Saturdays

Eligibility and Conditions: Up to 200 members. 6 Day membership is available to persons over 18 years of age and who shall pay 6 Day Membership

Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week (except Saturdays) subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Wednesday-Females Day play, the tee will be reserved for non-competitors at the following times: 8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non-competitors may play from 6.15pm onwards or 30 minutes after the last female competitor has teed off with **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse use: All 7 Days.

Meetings and voting rights: Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**. One vote per member.

Competitions: 7 Day **Male** Members may play in all competitions except those solely for Females or Juniors.

6 Day **Female** members may play in all competitions except those solely for Males or Juniors.

Visitors: Members may introduce up to three visitors to play on the course.

Joining Fees: As determined by the Executive Board.

Club Management: May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 4

Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

5 Day Male except Saturdays

Eligibility and Conditions: Up to 200 members. 6 Day membership is available to persons over 18 years of age and who shall pay 6 Day Membership

Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week (except Saturdays) subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Wednesday-Females Day play, the tee will be reserved for non-competitors at the following times: 8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non-competitors may play from 6.15pm onwards or 30 minutes after the last female competitor has teed off with **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse use: All 7 Days.

Meetings and voting rights: Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**. One vote per member.

Competitions: 7 Day **Male** Members may play in all competitions except those solely for Females or Juniors.

6 Day **Female** members may play in all competitions except those solely for Males or Juniors.

Visitors: Members may introduce up to three visitors to play on the course.

Joining Fees: As determined by the Executive Board

Club Management: May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 5

Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

7 Day Intermediate Male or Female Adult (21-26yrs)

Eligibility & Conditions:

Must be aged 21 and under 26 of age on 1st April each year. The number of such members shall be included in the limit set for 7 Day Members.

Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Wednesday-Females Day play, the tee will be reserved for non-competitors at the following times: 8.00am to 9.00am, 1.45pm to 3.00pm. Non-competitors may play from 6.15pm onwards or 30 minutes after the last female competitor has teed off with **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse use: All 7 Days.

Meetings and voting rights: Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**. One vote per member.

Competitions: Intermediate Adult **Male** Members may play in all competitions except those solely for Females or Juniors.

Intermediate **Female** members may play in all competitions except those solely for Males or Juniors.

Visitors: Members may introduce up to three visitors to play on the course.

Joining Fees: As determined by the Executive Board

Club Management: May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 6

Life Male or Female

Eligibility and Conditions:

All those from any category of membership who, on the nomination of the Board of Directors, are elected to be members for life by a simple majority at any general meeting of **the Club**. Such membership shall not apply to their spouses of the members so elected unless the spouses are elected in their own right.

Subscriptions:

Not liable for annual subscriptions.

Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse Use:

Full 7-day use of the clubhouse

Meetings and Voting Rights:

Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**.

One vote per member except on the setting of annual subscriptions and other membership dues for which they themselves are not liable.

Competitions:

Male Life members - may play in all competitions except those solely for Females or juniors.

Female Life members - may play in all competitions except those solely for Male or juniors.

Visitors:

May introduce up to three visitors to play the course.

Entrance Fees:

Not applicable

Club Management:

May stand for election to Captains Council

Appendix 7

Honorary Male or Female

HONORARY MEMBERS

Eligibility and Conditions:

All those from any category of membership who, on the nomination of the Captain, President & Lady Captain, are elected such by a simple majority at any general meeting of **the Club**. Such membership shall not apply to the spouses of the members so elected unless the spouses are elected in their own right.

In addition, **the Club** Captain, **Club** President and Lady Captain but not their respective spouses shall be Honorary Members of **the Club** for their year of office and shall not be liable to subscription for their term.

Subscriptions:

To be determined by the Executive Board from time to time..

Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse Use: Full 7-day use of the clubhouse

Meetings and Voting Rights:

Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**.

One vote per member except on the setting of annual subscriptions and other membership dues for which they themselves are not liable.

The Club Captain, Club President and Lady Captain however shall retain their full voting rights during their year of office.

Competitions:

Male Honorary members - may play in all competitions except those solely for female, and juniors

Female Honorary members - may play in all competitions except those solely for male, and juniors.

Visitors:

May introduce up to three visitors to play the course

Entrance Fees:

Not applicable

Club Management: May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1
Appendix 8

Subscriptions - Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

Special Category Male or Female

SPECIAL CATEGORY MEMBERS

Eligibility and Conditions:

7 Day members, and 6 Day members who were previously classified as Full Members as at 30th September 2010 (as defined in the rules of The Club prior to incorporation at 23/10/10) and have attained State Pension Age and fulfil the necessary continuous service level criteria i.e. 17 years as at 1st April 2008 increasing by 1 year each year until 1st April 2011, when the criteria will be 20 years continuous service thereafter.'

This Rule will not apply to any member who becomes a member after 1st April 2007.

Permitted Play: Permitted Hours of Play: Any day of the week subject to competitions, societies any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after last competitor has teed off and with the **approval** of the Professional.

Clubhouse Use: Full 7-day use of the clubhouse

Meetings and Voting Rights:

Entitled to receive notice of all general meetings of **the Club**. One vote per member.

Competitions:

May play in all competitions except those solely for Males (if a Female) or Female (if a Male) or juniors.

Visitors:

May introduce up to three visitors to play the course.

Entrance Fees: As determined by the Executive Board

Club Management:

May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 9

Junior Male or Female

Subscriptions: Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

Permitted Hours of Play: Can play any time, except on Ladies competition days when permitted hours of play are displayed outside the Professionals shop.

Single figure H/Cap Juniors may play in all senior medal/competitions by adding their name to the play sheet the day after the Draw.

Juniors with a H/Cap 10 and above can add their individual name one week after the Draw.

Single figure Juniors can win the competition they have entered for including Board Competitions.

Juniors cannot enter for the Captain's and President's prize.

Club Invitation day competitions are restricted to Juniors over the age of 18.

Clubhouse Use: Full 7-day use of the clubhouse

Meetings and Voting Rights: None.

Visitors May introduce up to three visitors to play the course

Entrance Fees: Not Applicable

Club Management: May not stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1
Appendix 10

Country Male or Female

Eligibility and Conditions:

Those who live outside a radius of 50 miles from the Clubhouse
And are members of other golf clubs **or** (ii) are former members
of **the Club**.

Subscriptions: Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

Permitted Play:

As arranged with the
Professional

Clubhouse Full 7 Day use

Meetings and Voting Rights:

Are entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**. No
voting rights.

Competitions:

Not eligible to play in any competitions with the exception of any
competition arranged for such members with the authority of the Captains
Council exception being club or charity days

Visitors:

May introduce up to three visitors to play the course.

Entrance Fees:

Not applicable

Club Management:

May not stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 11

Temporary Male or Female

TEMPORARY MEMBERS

Temporary Members – Spouse

Husbands, wives and partners of Members in any category shall be Temporary Members of **the Club**.

When present in **the Club**. They shall have no other rights whatsoever.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 12

Social Male or Female

Subscriptions Apply to the Office for details or see the Notice Board

SOCIAL MEMBERS

Eligibility and Conditions:

7 Day Members, their respective spouses and partners and the widows and widowers of such members who are granted such status after application to and consent of the Council.

All members who, at the 31st March 2007, were categorized as Special Discretionary or Non-Playing members.

Permitted Play:

Have no playing rights whatsoever.

Clubhouse Use:

Full 7-day use of the clubhouse*

Meetings and Voting Rights:

Are entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club**. but may not vote.

May introduce visitors to the Clubhouse.

3.2.10 ENTRANCE FEES: Not Applicable

Club Management:

May stand for election to the Captains Council.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 13

Corporate Male or Female

CORPORATE MEMBERS

Eligibility and Conditions:

As determined by the Captains Council & Executive Board.

Subscriptions:

As determined by the Captains Council & Executive Board.

Permitted Play:

As determined by the Captains Council & Executive Board

Clubhouse Use:

As determined by the Captains Council & Executive Board.

Such members shall have no other rights.

Page 1 of 1

Appendix 14

Community Amateur Sports Club Members

Eligibility and Conditions

4 Day membership is available to persons over 18 years of age and who shall pay £500 pa having satisfied the Honorary Secretary of their eligibility.

Permitted Hours of Play: Mondays, Wednesdays, Thursdays and Sundays, subject to competitions, societies and any **Club** organized events. Play after organized competitions must be 30 minutes after the last competitor.

Clubhouse use: All 7 Days.

Meetings and voting rights: Entitled to receive notices of all general meetings of **the Club** and attend and vote One vote per member.

Competitions: Mid-week medals and all Sunday competitions.

Visitors: Members may introduce up to three visitors to play on the course.

Joining Fees: Not applicable.

Club Management: May stand for election to the Captains Council and the Board of Directors

